
 Find out more online:
www.worcestershire.gov.uk

This document can be made available in other formats (large print, audio tape, computer disk and 
Braille) on request from Democratic Services on telephone number 01905 846621 or by emailing 

democraticServices@worcestershire.gov.uk

Worcestershire County Council 

 
 

Agenda 
Audit and Governance 
Committee 
 
Wednesday, 30 November 2022, 2.00 pm 
County Hall, Worcester 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 



 

DISCLOSING INTERESTS 
 

There are now 2 types of interests: 
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests' 

 
WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)? 
 

• Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain  
• Sponsorship by a 3rd party of your member or election expenses 
• Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where 

you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares 
• Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer) 
• Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued 

share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire. 
 

      NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you 
 
WHAT MUST I DO WITH A DPI? 

• Register it within 28 days and  
• Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting  

- you must not participate and you must withdraw. 
      NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI 
 

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'? 
• No need to register them but 
• You must declare them at a particular meeting where: 

  You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have  
a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion. 

 
WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY? 
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the 
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest. 
 
DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF I HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI? 

Not normally. You must withdraw only if it: 
• affects your pecuniary interests OR  

relates to a planning or regulatory matter 
• AND it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 

 
DON'T FORGET 

• If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence 
and nature – 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient    

• Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda  
- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little 

• Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be 
referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000 
and disqualification up to 5 years 

•  Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases. 
 



 

Agenda produced and published by Sheena Jones, Democratic Governance and Scrutiny Manager, County 
Hall, Spetchley Road, Worcester WR5 2NP 
 
To obtain further information or a copy of this agenda contact Simon Lewis, Committee Officer on 01905 
846621, slewis@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website 
 
Date of Issue: Tuesday, 22 November 2022 

 
 
Audit and Governance Committee 
Wednesday, 30 November 2022, 2.00 pm, County Hall, 
Worcester 
 
Membership:  Cllr Nathan Desmond (Chairman), Cllr Salman Akbar, Cllr Andy Fry, 

Cllr Laura Gretton, Cllr Peter Griffiths, Cllr Luke Mallett, 
Cllr Dan Morehead and Cllr Emma Stokes 
 

Agenda 
 
Item No Subject Page No 

  
1  Apologies and Named Substitutes 

 
 

 
2  Declarations of Interest 

 
 

 
3  Public Participation 

Members of the public wishing to take part should notify the Assistant 
Director for Legal and Governance in writing or by e-mail indicating the 
nature and content of their proposed participation no later than 9.00am 
on the working day before the meeting (in this case, 29 November 
2022). Further details are available on the Council’s website. Enquiries 
can be made through the telephone number/e-mail address listed in this 
agenda and on the website. 

 

 
4  Confirmation of Minutes 

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 September 2022. 
(previously circulated) 

 

 
5  Statutory Accounts and Pension Fund 2021/2022 - External Audit 

Findings Report 
 

1 - 74 

 
6  Annual Governance Statement 

 
75 - 94 

 
7  Annual Statutory Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 

2022 
 

To follow 

 
8  Appointment of External Auditors Update 

 
95 - 96 

 
9  Annual Governance Update 

 
97 - 102 

 
10  Internal Audit Progress Update 

 
103 - 110 

 
11  Finance Improvement Programme 

 
111 - 118 

 



Item No Subject Page No 
 

 

 

12  People Directorate - Debt Position Statement 
 

119 - 124 
 
13  Committee Training Proposals 

 
125 - 128 

 
14  Work Programme 

 
129 - 130 

 



  

 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2022 
 
STATUTORY ACCOUNTS AND PENSION FUND 2021/22 – 
EXTERNAL AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT 
 
 
 
Recommendation 
 

1. The Chief Financial Officer recommends that: 
 

a) The Audit Findings Report 2021/22 for Worcestershire County Council 
as set out in Appendix 1 be noted; 
 

b) The Audit Findings Report 2021/22 for Worcestershire Pension Fund as 
set out in Appendix 2 be noted; 

 
c) The Committee considers whether it wishes to receive any further 

reports on information contained in the Report; and 
 
d) The Committee considers whether there are any issues arising from the 

Report to draw to the attention of the Council. 
 

 
Summary 
 

2. A representative from Grant Thornton will attend the meeting to discuss the Audit 
Findings Reports for committee consideration. 
 
3. Grant Thornton is responsible for producing an Annual Findings Report for both 
Worcestershire County Council and the Worcestershire Pension Fund, to inform 
Committee of any issues identified during the audit(s), and to update on overall audit 
progress. 

 
4. The Reports include Action Plans of auditor recommendations to address any 
deficiencies found in the financial statements and processes, alongside initial 
management responses from Officers.    

 
Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
 
Michael Hudson, Chief Finance Officer, 01905 845560, mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Chris Bird, Chief Accountant, 01905 846994, cbird1@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 

Page 1

AGENDA ITEM 5

mailto:mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:cbird1@worcestershire.gov.uk


 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

 
Supporting Information 
 

• Appendix 1- The 2021/22 Annual Findings Report for Worcestershire County 
Council 

• Appendix 2 – The 2021/22 Audit Findings Report for Worcestershire Pension 
Fund 
 

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer), there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 

Page 2



P
age 3



Commercial in confidence

P
age 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 6



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 7



Commercial in confidence

P
age 8



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 9



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 10



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 11



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 12



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•P
age 13



Commercial in confidence

P
age 14



Commercial in confidence

P
age 15



Commercial in confidence









P
age 16



Commercial in confidence

Net pension 

liability – £436m

•

•

•

•

•









Assumption Actuary 

Value

PwC 

range

Assessment

Discount rate 2.8% 2.7% to 

2.8%



Pension increase rate 3.4% 3-3.5% 

Salary growth 4.9% 3.9% to 

5.9%



Duration of liabilities 17 years 15 to 22 

years



P
age 17



Commercial in confidence

Financial Instruments

Minimum Revenue Provision 









P
age 18



Commercial in confidence

17

Assessment and Recommendations

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 19



Commercial in confidence

P
age 20



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 21



Commercial in confidence

• does not comply with disclosure requirements set out in CIPFA/SOLACE 

guidance or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit,

•

•

Specified 

procedures for 

Whole of 

Government 

Accounts 

P
age 22



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 23



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 24



Commercial in confidence

Transparency report 2020 
(grantthornton.co.uk)

•

P
age 25

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2020.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 26



P
age 27



Commercial in confidence







P
age 28



Commercial in confidence







P
age 29



Commercial in confidence

P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

P
age 31



Commercial in confidence

P
age 32



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

P
age 33



Commercial in confidence

P
age 34



Commercial in confidence

P
age 35



Commercial in confidence

P
age 36



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 37



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•P
age 38



Commercial in confidence

•

•

−

−

−

•

•

−

−

•

−

−

−

−

P
age 39

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

−

−

−

−

−

−

•

−

−

•

P
age 40



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 41



P
age 42



P
age 43



Commercial in confidence

P
age 44



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 45



Commercial in confidence

•

•
•

•

P
age 46



Commercial in confidence

P
age 47



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 48



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

.  

P
age 49



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•P
age 50



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•









P
age 51



Commercial in confidence

•

•









P
age 52



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 53



Commercial in confidence









P
age 54



Commercial in confidence

13

Assessment and Recommendations

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 55



Commercial in confidence

P
age 56



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 57



Commercial in confidence

P
age 58



Commercial in confidence

•

Transparency report 2020 
(grantthornton.co.uk)

P
age 59

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2020.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 60



P
age 61



Commercial in confidence







P
age 62



Commercial in confidence

✓

 ✓

 ✓

 ✓

 ✓

✓

P
age 63



Commercial in confidence

P
age 64



Commercial in confidence

P
age 65



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 66



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 67



Commercial in confidence

•

•

−

−

−

•

•

−

−

•

−

−

−

−

P
age 68

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

−

−

−

−

−

−

•

−

−

P
age 69



Commercial in confidence

P
age 70



Commercial in confidence

P
age 71



Commercial in confidence

P
age 72



P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
Audit and Governance Committee – 01 December 2022 
 

 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2022 
 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2021/22 
 
 
 
Recommendation 
 

1. The Chief Financial Officer recommends that the Annual Governance 
Statement 2021/22 be noted.  

 
Background 
 

2.  The Council is required, as part of its ongoing review of the effectiveness of its 
governance arrangements, to produce an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 
2021/22.  The AGS forms part of the Annual Statement of Accounts. 
 
3. The AGS is primarily retrospective.  It reports on the assurance framework and 
measures in place for the financial year 2021/22 and considers any significant issues 
of governance up to the date of publication of the Statement of Accounts.  The AGS 
outlines the actions taken or proposed to address governance issues identified. 
 
4. The AGS is completed by the Corporate Risk Management Group based on 
information provided by senior officers.  The evidence comes from a variety of 
sources, including service plans, relevant lead officers within the organisation, 
internal and external auditors and inspection agencies. 

 
5. There have been no alterations made to the draft Annual Governance Statement 
noted by the Committee in July 2022, and published as part of the unaudited 
Statement of Accounts. 

 
Content 
 

6. The AGS assesses the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements 
by reference to the principles of good governance in accordance with the CIPFA / 
SoLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework and 
identified areas where it is recognised that governance arrangements could be 
strengthened.  These principles aim to ensure that the Council is: 
 

• Conducting our business in accordance with all relevant laws and regulations; 
 

• Safeguarding and properly accounting for public money; and  
 

• Using resources economically, efficiently and effectively to achieve agreed 
priorities which benefit local people. 

 

Page 75

AGENDA ITEM 6



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

7. As part of the review of the Council's effectiveness significant internal control 
issues affecting the Council are identified.  In accordance with CIPFA guidance, an 
issue is regarded as significant if: 
 

• The issue has seriously prejudiced or prevented achievement of a principal 
objective; 
 

• The issue has resulted in a need to seek additional funding to allow it to be 
resolved, or has resulted in significant diversion of resources from another 
aspect of the business; 
 

• The issue has led to a material impact on the accounts; 
 

• The Audit and Governance Committee has advised that it should be 
considered significant for this purpose; 
 

• The Chief Internal Auditor has reported on it as significant, for this purpose, in 
the annual opinion on the internal control environment; 
 

• The issue, or its impact, has attracted significant public interest or has 
seriously damaged the reputation of the organisation; 
 

• The issue has resulted in formal action being taken by the Chief Financial 
Officer and / or the Monitoring Officer. 

 
8. The AGS includes the following governance issues as areas for improvement.  
Items which were included in the 2020/21 AGS and remain governance issues 
following review in 2021/22 are: 
 

• Serious harm or death of a child or young person - specific priorities for 
continual development and implementation are included in the Worcestershire 
Children First Business Plan and detailed within Social Care and 
Safeguarding Business Plan focussing on Ofsted recommendations for areas 
of improvement. 

 
• Activity exceeds budget allocation – regular budget monitoring and a focus on 

demand / activity continues to strengthen and be a focus of our reporting and 
monitoring.   

 
• Serious harm or death of an adult with care and support needs – the Council 

will continue to monitor and manage through the Safeguarding Adults Board, 
supported by teams where staff are trained and benchmarked against the 
safeguarding competency framework. 

 
9.  The following new issues have been identified as part of the 2021/22 review 
process: 
 

• Ensuring a financially sustainable medium-term budget including monitoring 
the ongoing financial impact of COVID-19 on budget income and expenditure. 

 

Page 76



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

• Non-compliance with Corporate Policies and Procedures across all 
disciplines. 

 
10. A detailed action plan to ensure that work is undertaken to deliver the areas 
where it is recognised that governance arrangements could be strengthened will be 
developed.  Progress against the plan will be reported to the Audit and Governance 
Committee on a quarterly basis. 
 
11. The governance of the Council will continue to be monitored by Cabinet, Audit 
and Governance and other councillor committees, and the Council's Strategic and 
Wider Leadership Teams. 

 
12. Grant Thornton, the Council's external auditors, have considered the AGS as part 
of their external audit, with the aim of confirming that it is consistent with their 
knowledge of our organisation and the financial statements.   

 
Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Michael Hudson, Chief Financial Officer 
Tel: 01905 845560 
Email:  mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Chris Bird, Chief Accountant 
Tel: 01905 846994 
Email: cbird1@worcschildrenfirst.org.uk 
 
 
 
Supporting Information 
 

• Appendix: Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 
 
Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer, there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 
 
 

Page 77

mailto:mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:cbird1@worcschildrenfirst.org.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Worcestershire County Council 
Annual Governance Statement 
2021/22 

P
age 79



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 19 

 

Introduction 

The Annual Governance Statement is a review of our activities to 
ensure that the County Council is carrying out its functions 
effectively.  This statement explains how the County Council has 
discharged its governance responsibilities during 2021/22 and the 
key governance mechanisms in place. 

Our risk management process is a key part of our governance 
arrangements and provides assurance that: 

 our business is conducted in accordance with all relevant 
laws and regulations; 

 public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for; 
and 

 resources are used economically, efficiently and effectively 
to achieve agreed priorities which benefit local people. 

 

The purpose of the Governance Framework 

The County Council is committed to improving governance through 
a process of continual evaluation and review, delivered through the 
seven principles of good governance as identified in the Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016 and 
supported by processes which strengthen corporate governance 
such as the Corporate Risk Management Group. 

Our system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a 
reasonable level and is based on an ongoing process to identify and 
manage risks to the achievement of policies, aims and objectives, to 
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised, and to manage 

them efficiently, effectively and economically.  It cannot eliminate all 
risk of failure but provides reasonable assurance of effectiveness.   

 

This Annual Governance Statement is published in accordance with 
the CIPFA/SoLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Framework 2016.  The Council aims to achieve good 
standards of governance by adhering to the seven core principles 
below: 

 

P
age 80



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 20 

 

Overview of Governance Framework 

The governance framework outlined above has been in place throughout 2021/22 and maintained to the date of the approval of the Statement 
of Accounts.  Key governance arrangements during 2021/22 comprised the following (full detail is provided in the County Council’s 
Constitution). 

The Council has a Leader and Cabinet executive model, with the following key responsibilities: 

The Cabinet The Leader and the Cabinet are responsible for all County Council’s functions except those required 
by law or the Constitution to be those of full Council.  Executive functions can be discharged, as 
delegated by the County Council’s Constitution to the relevant committee, individual cabinet member 
or officer. 

Audit & Governance Committee The Committee oversees the audit and corporate governance arrangements of the County Council 
including annual audit plans and reports of internal and external auditors, the County Council’s system 
of internal control, risk management and prevention and detection of fraud and corruption. 

Overview & Scrutiny Committees The Board’s main responsibilities include commissioning work for scrutiny panels and establishing 
scrutiny task groups to ensure that significant issues are subject to appropriate review and scrutiny. 

Standard & Ethics Committee The Committee ensures that high standards of conduct are maintained by County Councillors and co-
opted members by reference to the Council’s Code of Conduct. 

 

Functions, powers and duties are delegated to officers by the Council, Leader and Cabinet, with the following key responsibilities: 

Strategic Leadership Team The County Council’s Strategic Leadership Team is collectively responsible for ensuring that effective 
governance arrangements are in place and are subject to regular review.  The Team provide 
leadership, determine policy and uphold expected standards of behaviour.  

Chief Officer Group The Chief Officer Group has collective responsibility for overseeing the implementation of cross 
organisational strategy and the development and implementation of operational plans, policies, 

P
age 81



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 21 

 

procedures and budgets prior to Senior Leadership Team and Committee approval.  The Group 
promotes robust, fit for purpose governance across the County Council. 

Head of Paid Service (the Chief 
Executive) 

The Chief Executive is responsible for overseeing policy development and planning, corporate 
performance, and community leadership, alongside the effective leadership, management and 
performance of the Strategic Leadership Team.   

Assistant Director for Legal and 
Governance (the Monitoring Officer) 

The Monitoring Officer is responsible for maintaining the Constitution and ensuring that functions act 
in accordance with the Constitution and relevant legal requirements.  These arrangements include 
overseeing the ethical conduct of the Council and the production of associated codes, conventions 
and protocols. 

Chief Finance Officer The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the oversight and delivery of financial management 
arrangements; achieved through a robust financial control framework, financial regulations, standing 
orders, a scheme of delegation and an independent and objective Internal Audit function. 

Chief Internal Auditor and Head of 
Risk Management  

The Chief Internal Auditor and Head of Risk Management is responsible for ensuring effective 
management of the Council’s risks, including evaluating controls and mitigations as part of a risk-
based internal audit approach.   

The Risk and Assurance Manager, supported by the Corporate Risk Management Group, maintains 
the Corporate Risk Register, monitoring identified risks, controls and mitigating actions.  Directorate 
Leadership Teams monitor and review directorate risk registers and allocate resources to ensure risks 
management arrangements are effective.  

External Audit External Audit report on the Statement of Accounts and review the Council’s arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

  

P
age 82



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 22 

 

Review of Effectiveness 

The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of Chief Officers and senior managers with responsibility for the design and maintenance 
of an effective governance environment.  It is also informed by the work of Internal Audit and the annual opinion provided by the Chief Internal 
Auditor. The results of the annual review of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements during 2021/22 are set out in the table 
below and demonstrate how the Council has complied with the seven principles of the CIPFA/Solace Framework. Areas for improvement are 
included as part of the assessment and a detailed action plan will be developed to ensure that work is undertaken to deliver these 
improvements.  Progress against the plan will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee on a quarterly basis. 

Principle Assessment of the effectiveness of governance arrangements during 2021/22 

Core Principle A: Behaving with 
integrity, demonstrating strong 
commitment to ethical values, and 
respecting the rule of law 

Key aspects of the Council’s governance arrangements during 2021/22: 

We have arrangements in place to provide assurance that our values are upheld, and that members 
and officers demonstrate high standards of conduct and behaviour to comply with laws and regulations.  

These include: 

 Codes of conduct for officers and members;  
 The inclusion of ethical values in policies and procedures for all areas; 
 A complaints procedure ensuring appropriate investigation and response 
 A Whistleblowing Policy which enables employees and others who have serious concerns 

about any aspect of the Council’s work to come forward and voice those concerns; 
 A commitment to equality of opportunity for all citizens, in line with the Public Sector Duty as 

set out in the Equality Act 2010; and 
 Our Constitution, which sets out the conditions to ensure that all officers, key post holders and 

members can fulfil their responsibilities in accordance with legislative requirements.  Roles, 
responsibilities and delegated authority for individual Members, the Council, Cabinet and senior 
officers are documented.   

 A review of the Constitution has started. 
 Formal recognition of the Trade Unions in our processes and change. 

 

P
age 83



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 23 

 

Areas where it is recognised that governance arrangements could be further strengthened include: 

 There is a need to regularly review the Council’s Constitution and related policies and 
procedures to ensure that Officer and Member responsibilities are clearly documented and 
promote a culture of accountability and strong ethical values.  As a result of Covid-19 
prioritisation a review is needed, this will include improvements to strengthen the monitoring of 
compliance with legislative and governance requirements should be included in this review 
with clearly communicated consequences where behaviours do not demonstrate integrity. 

 Alongside this a need for training of Officers and Members to increase constitutional 
awareness and individual responsibility for compliance will ensure that these values become 
embedded in behaviour.   

 Processes to support the delivery of the Council’s ethical values should be strengthened in 
areas such as Declarations and Registers of Interest, using a model of training and declaration, 
to promote consistency and transparency. 

 A review of Members’ roles and delegations on boards and companies. 

Core Principle B: Ensuring openness 
and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement 

Key aspects of the Council’s governance arrangements during 2021/22: 

The Chief Executive, Chief Officer Group and Strategic Leadership Team value and are committed to 
ensuring every employee is engaged and feedback is sought, listened to and acted upon.  There are 
strong relationships with the Council’s recognised Trade Unions and the Council remains committed 
to building and maintaining strong employee relations.  Monthly Staff Briefings are held by the Chief 
Executive and Senior Leaders. 

Engagement includes: 

 In response to increased remote working, the Council has strengthened engagement with staff 
through regular communication from the Chief Executive and at directorate level.  The use of 
Slido enables staff to engage directly with the Chief Executive. 

 Improvements in technology facilitate hybrid working practices and support the pastoral needs 
of staff.   

 Annual Staff Survey.  Responses have informed the development of the Workforce Strategy 
2021-2024.  Wellbeing and career development insight and feedback is shared at mid-year and 
end of year review points. 

P
age 84



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 24 

 

 In 2021/22, the Worcestershire Viewpoint Survey 2021 enabled Councillors and officers to 
engage with members of the local community to receive feedback and monitor public perception 
in relation to local priorities, satisfaction with Council services and level of engagement. 

 Feedback from events and surveys help to inform the Council's four corporate priorities: 
supporting Children and families, promoting Health and Well Being, protecting the Environment 
and championing Open for Business.   

Areas where it is recognised that governance arrangements could be further strengthened include: 

 Improved co-ordination of the Council’s external inspection and regulatory report framework, 
to inform assurance and improve information sharing and collaboration across stakeholders. 

 There is a need for increased clarity, via the review of the Council’s Constitution, of elected 
Member responsibilities relating to engagement and communication with Officers, residents 
and businesses. 

Core Principle C: Defining outcomes 
in terms of sustainable economic, 
social, and environmental benefits 

Key aspects of the Council’s governance arrangements during 2021/22 include: 

Our Corporate Plan: Shaping Worcestershire’s Future 2017-22, identifies four key priorities that help 
us shape the future vision for Worcestershire and focus the delivery of our services.  The refreshed 
Corporate Plan 2022-27 continues with the Council’s priorities building on the progress made in recent 
years to drive improvements for the County to 2027. 

 
Open for Business – we have a significant programme of improvements in 
workforce skills, employment, infrastructure and productivity.  We are aiming to 
become a financially self-sufficient Council and to achieve this aim we are promoting 
and supporting businesses in the County and those looking to relocate here. 

Children and Families – we have a strong focus on improving outcomes for the 
children, young people and families of Worcestershire.  We support schools with 
achieving a good or outstanding rating by Ofsted and facilitating young people 
achieving five or more good GCSEs and support young people moving 
successfully into employment.  These services are delivered in conjunction with 
our wholly owned company, Worcestershire Children First.  

 

 

P
age 85



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 25 

 

The Environment - Worcestershire's environment is one of our key features and 
contributes to enhancing the quality of life for residents and visitors.  We are 
committed to improving our infrastructure networks, including transport and digital 
technology to support business and encourage investment.  We also have a key 
focus on minimising waste which goes to landfill. 

 

Health and Wellbeing – we are working with local partners to support our 
residents to be healthier, live longer, have better quality of life and remain 
independent for as long as possible.  Our focus on adult social care aims to keep 
people with care and support needs as independent as possible by providing 
choice in how to live their lives. 

 

The Council’s Sustainability Policy promotes the principles of sustainable development through: green 
economy, action to tackle climate change, protecting and enhancing the natural environment and 
fairness and improving wellbeing.  To demonstrate its sustainability policy commitment the Council 
has committed to: 

 Promoting sustainability at a strategic level;  
 Lead by example in addressing the Council’s operational impacts on the community and 

environment; and 
 Promoting sustainable development throughout the county. 

The Council reports on progress through the annual Corporate Environmental Report.   

Areas where it is recognised that governance arrangements could be further strengthened include: 

 The need for a mechanism to enable transparent and timely performance reporting (to replace 
the Balanced Scorecard) linked to the priorities and objectives outlined in the Corporate Plan 
2022-27. 

 A focus on Environmental, Social and Governance arrangements, including specific internal 
audit assignments and as part of wider deliverables with a focus on measurable outcomes. 

 

P
age 86



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 26 

 

Core Principle D: Determining the 
interventions necessary to optimise 
the achievement of the intended 
outcomes 

Key aspects of the Council’s governance arrangements during 2021/22 include: 

The County Council's planning process works to support and optimise delivery and identify and 
mitigate any risks. 
 

 Each key area of focus identifies several aims and targets and responsibility for achieving these 
lies with individual directorates, and relevant aims and targets are included in individual service 
delivery plans.  

 Risks are managed by the Chief Internal Auditor and Head of Risk Management, supported by 
the Risk and Assurance Manager and Corporate Risk Management Group.  The process has 
been embedded during 2021/22 with a closer link to the audit programme and an increased 
focus on identifying emerging risks.   

 The Council has robust processes in place to support financial planning and sustainability.  The 
budget is informed by the Medium-Term Financial Plan with key risks and assumptions clearly 
identified and reported to members, supported by a strategy and financial planning process.  
Budget proposals are subject to review and scrutiny by relevant stakeholders, including elected 
Members as well as through meetings with Trade Union Representatives and the Schools 
Forum.  In 2020/21, the external audit report identified no weaknesses in the Council’s 
arrangements to ensure financial sustainability and no improvement recommendations were 
made. 

 Progress against the Corporate Plan is monitored and reported to councillors on a regular basis. 

Areas where it is recognised that that governance arrangements could be further strengthened 
include: 

 Increased strategic engagement with the risk management process, including nominating a 
strategic lead at SLT level to co-ordinate the identification of risks and mitigating actions, to 
ensure that strategic decisions are informed by effective consideration of relevant risks. 

 In addition to improvements in performance monitoring arrangements, there is a need for a 
robust system of accountability for performance against corporate, financial and management 
targets. 

Core Principle E: Developing the 
entity’s capacity, including the 

Key aspects of the Council’s governance arrangements during 2021/22 include: 

P
age 87



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 27 

 

capability of its leadership and the 
individuals within it 

 To deliver our objectives, we rely on our staff to carry on the great work they already do daily 
which is underpinned by Our People Values: 

o Customer Focus - putting the customer at the heart of everything we do 
o 'Can do' Culture – being proactive to achieve excellence 
o Freedom within Boundaries – courage to make constructive change 

 Our Workforce Strategy 2021 - 2024 is designed to build a workforce with personal and 
collective organisational resilience.  The strategy is to be used by each Service area to develop 
their annual workforce plans, supported by their HR Operations Partners 

 Mandatory learning is in place for all staff and monitored by directorate leadership teams.  The 
Council has launched a new learning management system for 2022/23, which supports the 
Workforce Strategy by enhancing the learning experience of staff and enabling greater 
transparency for employees and managers. 

 Our Annual Performance Review Cycle forms a key part of our organisational workforce 
planning. Employees and line managers meet regularly to plan and monitor progress against 
personal and organisational objectives and support employee wellbeing. Indicative ratings are 
recorded at mid-year review point, with formal ratings recorded at end of year performance 
reviews. 100% of eligible employees had an end of year performance review 2021/22. 

 CIPFA published the Financial Management (FM) Code in October 2019.  The Code sets out 
17 Financial Management Standards against which local authorities are required to perform a 
self-assessment.  The results of the 2021/22 self-assessment will be presented to Audit & 
Governance Committee in July 2022 and actions to address areas identified for improvement 
will be implemented during 2022/23. 

Areas where it is recognised that that governance arrangements could be further strengthened 
include: 

 The capacity and capability of Members and Officers should be further developed through 
enhanced arrangements for tailored training relevant to individual roles and responsibilities, 
with core competencies including finance, HR and decision making at the fore of that. 

 There is a need to promote management accountability and communicate consequences for 
non-compliance in all Council policies. 

P
age 88



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 28 

 

 The development of audit arrangements to review the effectiveness of the performance cycle 
and highlight areas for improvement.  

Core Principle F: Managing risks and 
performance through robust internal 
control and strong public financial 
management 

Key aspects of the Council’s governance arrangements during 2021/22 include: 

 Risk management involves the identification, analysis and control of threats or events that 
adversely affect the achievement of the County Council's strategic and operational objectives.  
It also enables positive risks to be taken to innovate and improve service provision.  The Risk 
Management Strategy details the methodology for evaluating corporate risk management 
arrangements and its delivery is supported by the Corporate Risk Management Group.     

 The County Council's Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy embeds effective standards in 
countering fraud, corruption and theft.  The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring 
this Strategy is applied and that the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud 
and Corruption is followed.   

 The County Council supports and submits data for the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) and 
assesses all matches for review and, where appropriate, mitigation.   

 Financial Regulations form part of the Constitution and set out our financial management 
framework for ensuring we make the best use of the money we have available to spend.  It 
outlines the financial roles and responsibilities for staff and Members and provides a framework 
for financial decision-making. Where there are specific statutory powers and duties the 
Financial Regulations seek to ensure these are duly complied with, as well as reflecting best 
professional practice and decision-making.   

Areas where it is recognised that that governance arrangements could be further strengthened 
include: 

 A review of the Constitution and enhanced training across Officers and Members to ensure 
responsibilities are clear as noted above at Core Principal A.  This should include the Council’s 
contract procedure rules. 

 Monitoring arrangements to identify and take action to address issues of non-compliance with 
corporate procedures.  

 Clearer links between the governance framework and decision making ability to ensure activity 
is aligned to policies and procedures and supported by robust internal controls.  

P
age 89



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 29 

 

Core Principle G: Implementing good 
practices in transparency, reporting 
and audit to deliver effective 
accountability 

Key aspects of the Council’s governance arrangements during 2021/22 include: 

 A large amount of information is available on the County Council website which gives details of 
the working of the organisation, what we spend, and how our decisions are made.  

 The Forward Plan provides information about the matters on which the County Council will 
make decisions.  Formal agenda, reports and minutes for all committee meetings are published 
on our website which ensures that people know what decisions the County Council is planning 
to take, and the decisions taken.   

 Our Monitoring Officer has a specific duty to ensure the County Council, its officers and elected 
councillors maintain the highest standards in all they do.   

 Arrangements are in place to ensure that we fully comply with the requirements of the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of 
Internal Audit.   

 We are registered as a Controller under the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) which 
governs how we manage and process the information we collect and retain.  We have a 
nominated Data Protection Officer and procedures in place that explain how we use and share 
information, as well as arrangements for members of the public to access information.  We have 
also adopted the model publication scheme produced by the Information Commissioner's 
Office. 

 
Areas where it is recognised that that governance arrangements could be further strengthened 
include: 

 To ensure that there is an effective and transparent scrutiny process, a strengthening of 
arrangements for briefing sessions between Members and Officers. 

 Improved arrangements for cross-party briefings and working groups to ensure Members have 
sight of key issues to enable informed decision making. 

 Greater focus on the Council’s performance measures and cohesive public reporting through 
improved performance monitoring and holding to account against corporate targets. 

P
age 90



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 30 

 

Audit and Audit Assurances 

The Council’s Statement of Accounts are audited by Grant 
Thornton UK LLP.  In accordance with statutory requirements, the 
annual audit includes an examination and certification of the 
financial statements to confirm they are ‘true and fair’ and an 
assessment of the County Council’s arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  In 
2020/21, Grant Thornton gave an unqualified audit opinion on the 
financial statements with no significant weaknesses identified in 
our Value for Money (VFM) arrangements. 

Internal audit services are provided by the County Council’s in-
house team.  The team’s role is to enhance and protect the 
County Council’s value by providing risk-based and objective 
assurance, advice and insight.  It is responsible for reviewing the 
adequacy of internal controls across all areas of the County 
Council and its services are managed and delivered in 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS). 

The work of the Internal Audit team is supported by external 
providers for specialist reviews such as technical audits of IT 
systems.  Further assurance is provided by reviews undertaken 
by external agencies including OFSTED, the Care Quality 
Commission, the Office of the Information Commissioner and 
other Local Authority Inspectorates. 

The Audit & Governance Committee approve the Internal Audit 
Charter and Audit Plan which outline the role of Internal Audit, its 

responsibilities and independence and the planned programme of 
audit work. 

A flexible audit plan has enabled work to be focused on key risks 
and the Chief Internal Auditor has maintained close links with the 
leadership of the Council to ensure that adequate assurance and 
organisational coverage is delivered.  Based on the results of 
assurance and advisory work undertaken during the year, the 
Chief Internal Auditor’s annual opinion is that the control 
environment provides moderate assurance that the significant 
risks facing the County Council are addressed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 91



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 31 

 

Significant Governance Considerations  

 

Recurrent Considerations / Brought Forward from 2020/21  Update on Progress/Action taken to address the issue in 2021/22 

Serious harm or death of a child or young person  
Safeguarding risk because of serious harm or death of a child or failure to 
safeguard children. Reputational risk as a result of poor inspection or service 
breakdown.  

Safeguarding issues continue to be monitored and managed through the WCF 
Governance Structures and through partnership working with the Worcestershire 
Safeguarding Children Partnership (WSCP) and other local strategic partners. 
Quality Assurance measures are in place.   Safeguarding and activity has been 
monitored by the WSCP Safeguarding Practice Review Board and Get Safe 
Partnership Board.  Our sustained improvement in Children’s Social Care has 
been validated through the year from an Ofsted visit in July 2021 focussing on the 
Family Front Door and the DfE confirming in November 2021 the removal of 
statutory direction placed on the council, we now enter a period of “support and 
supervision” in line with all authorities who exit formal intervention. 

Activity exceeds budget allocation  
Inadequate budgets and / or ineffective financial management will impact on the 
County Council’s ability to effectively provide services and impair our ability to 
forward plan. The level of earmarked and general reserves could also be impacted 
by any unplanned draw down.  

Regular budget monitoring and forecasting remain a focus of our financial 
management processes.  Management accounts, which report actual income and 
expenditure against budgeted and forecast performance, have been prepared on 
a monthly basis and the achievement of savings targets and use of Council 
reserves has been monitored throughout the year as part of ongoing activity to 
consider financial sustainability and inform our assessment of going concern.  

Serious harm or death of an adult with care and support needs  
A safeguarding risk because of serious harm / death from failure to safeguard an 
adult with care and support needs, whether the local authority is meeting those 
needs or not. We also face reputational risk as a result of service breakdown.  

A Safeguarding Adult Board is in place with representation from safeguarding 
partners. A centralised Adult Safeguarding Team located within the Safeguarding 
Hub ensures competency of staff, information sharing and consistency in decision 
making. The Adult Safeguarding Team are aligned with the Area Teams and 3 
Conversations processes. Staff are assessed against WSAB safeguarding 
competency framework.  As part of the CQC assurance self-assessment (pending 
CQC inspection of local authority adult social care services as of April 2023) the 
effectiveness of both the Safeguarding Team and Safeguarding Adults Board will 
be reviewed, and outcomes of safeguarding process and practice will be assessed 
against the statutory safeguarding framework and how effectively we have 
embedded the ‘Making Safeguarding Personal’ approach. 

Consideration of the response to and recovery from the impact of COVID-19 
on residents and the local economy, including any legacy impact on care 
provision. 

The impact of increased expenditure and lost income has been monitored as part 
of routine financial monitoring activity and reported to Central Government in line 
with deadlines throughout the year 

P
age 92



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 32 

 

 

 

  

2021/22 New Governance Considerations Identified Actions 

Ensuring a financial sustainable medium-term budget including monitoring 
the ongoing financial impact of COVID-19 on budgeted income and 
expenditure. 

The continuing impact of COVID-19 has been a key consideration in the Council’s 
financial planning activity and the 2022/23 budget setting process.  Where COVID-
19 grant funding has been used in the year to support services in their response to 
and recovery from COVID-19, work to identify recurrent expenditure and identify 
alternative funding streams is in progress. 

Non-compliance with Corporate Policies and Procedures across all 
disciplines. 

A review of the Council’s Constitution and supporting policies and procedures will 
be performed to ensure that responsibility and accountability is defined and the 
consequences for non-compliance across Officers and Members are clearly 
communicated and that action is taken where instances of non-compliance are 
identified. 

P
age 93



 

Worcestershire County Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 Page 33 

 

Issues identified for 2022/23 

A number of the issues and corresponding action plans noted 
above will continue to be the key focus for the County Council’s 
leadership in 2022/23: 

 Financial Management & Resilience: ensuring that financial 
monitoring is supported by a robust and realistic budget and 
effective and timely in-year monitoring of performance against 
budget and delivery of agreed savings plans. 

 An assurance gap analysis of decision making, including 
boards and roles of directors to help drive a constitutional 
refresh to support and strengthen effective business decision 
making.  This will include schemes of delegation and contract 
procedure rules. 

 Strengthen the Council’s performance framework, including 
service plans linked to performance and medium-term 
financial plans. 

 Strengthen the process around capital decision making, 
including business cases. 

 Further enhance the working between Officers and Members, 
including Officer Register of Interests. 

 Focus on core competency training and development for all 
employees, in particular HR, finance, decision making and 
performance management. 

 

Certification 

To the best of our knowledge, the governance arrangements, as defined 
above have been effective.  We propose over the coming year to take 
steps to address the above matters to further enhance our governance 
arrangements.  We are satisfied that these steps will address the need 
for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and 
will monitor their implementation and operation during the year and as 
part of our next annual review and through the County Council's 
Corporate Risk Management Group, as well as the Audit & Governance 
Committee.   

 

Paul Robinson  

Chief Executive 

Date:  

Simon Geraghty 

Leader of the County Council 

Date: 

 

  

P
age 94



  

 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2022 
 
APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS 
 
 
Recommendation 
 

1. The Chief Financial Officer recommends that the appointment of Grant 
Thornton as the auditor of Worcestershire County Council and 
Worcestershire Pension Fund for five years from 2023/24 be noted. 

Introduction 
 

2. Under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the Council is required to 
appoint an auditor to audit its Statement of Accounts each financial year.   

3. The external audit of local authorities was previously a responsibility of the Audit 
Commission, established in 1983 for this purpose.  The Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 abolished the Audit Commission as at 31 March 2015 and its functions have 
since been delivered via the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), National Audit 
Office (NAO), Financial Reporting Council (FRC) and the Cabinet Office. 

4. The Council’s current external auditor is Grant Thornton UK LLP and this 
appointment covers the period up to and including the audit of the 2022/23 accounts.  
The Council opted into the ‘appointing person’ national auditor appointments 
arrangements established by PSAA for the period covering the accounts for the five-
year period from 2018/19 to 2022/23. 

5. In December 2021, the Council opted in to the PSAA arrangements for 
procurement covering audits for 2023/24 to 2027/28.  
 
 

Procurement of External Audit for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 

6. In developing appointment proposals, PSAA considered information provided from 
both opted-in bodies and audit firms, and sought to balance a range of factors including: 

o auditor independence, the most critical of all the factors; 

o joint/shared working arrangements and information from bodies, where we have 
prioritised those requests that are most relevant to the auditor’s responsibilities; 

o our commitments to the firms under the audit contracts; 

o bodies’ main offices and firms’ geographical preferences; 

o the status of prior years’ audits; and 

Page 95

AGENDA ITEM 8



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

o continuity of auditor where appropriate. 

7. In October 2022, PSAA advised the Council (through the Chief Finance Officer) 
that Grant Thornton were the proposed appointment for external auditors to both 
Worcestershire County Council and the Worcestershire Pension Fund for the period 
2023/24 to 2027/28 

8. Following conversation with key stakeholders including the Leader of the Council, 
the Chief Finance Officer has sent acceptance of this proposal to PSAA. 

9. Local Authorities have been advised that audit fees for the period will be 
significantly increased, due to increased scope and complexity of audits, and to ensure 
capacity and sustainability in the local audit market. For Worcestershire, current 
assumptions are for additional costs in the region of £0.2m. 

 
Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Michael Hudson, Chief Finance Officer, 01905 845560, mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk 
Chris Bird, Chief Accountant, 01905 846994, cbird1@worcestershire.gov.uk 

 
Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Finance Officer) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 

Page 96

mailto:mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:cbird1@worcestershire.gov.uk


  

 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2022 
 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE UPDATE 
 
 
 
Recommendations 
 

1. The Chief Financial Officer recommends that the Annual Governance 
update be noted. 

 
 

Background 
 

2. The Audit and Governance Committee received the Annual Governance 
Statement at its July meeting, as part of that an action plan was provided to 
Committee. An update was provided to the September Committee and this report 
gives the Committee the latest update. 
 

Progress 
 

3. An update on the actions is attached as an Appendix to this report, this shows: 
 

• Overall, the actions are on time and being progressed. 
 

• There has been some delay arising from the recent departure of the Monitoring 
Officer. 

 
4. A large proportion of this work is due to be delivered in the final quarter of this year 
and as such this progress is broadly as expected. 

 
Supporting Information 
 
Appendix - Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 Action Plan Progress 
 
Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Michael Hudson, Chief Financial Officer 
Tel: 01905 726268 
Email: mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report.

Page 97

AGENDA ITEM 9

mailto:mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk


  

 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

Appendix 
Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 Action Plan Progress 
 

Task How Progress 
Financial Management & 
Resilience: ensuring that 
financial monitoring is 
supported by a robust and 
realistic budget and effective 
and timely in-year monitoring 
of performance against budget 
and delivery of agreed savings 
plans.  

The Finance Improvement Programme has a series 
of projects to undertake work on financial 
reporting, controls and E5 maximisation. 
 
This will be linked to the revisions / 
interdependency below relating to improvements 
in the coming financial year to the performance 
and business planning framework. 
 
Agree the expectancy and support with SLT/COG 
 
Move forward on self-service, with clear roles and 
accountability (linked to training below), for 
example ensuring budget for spend is secured 
before any decision is taken and that decision is in 
line with the scheme of delegation also noted 
below. 
 
 
 
 
 

Overall, the FIP Project is on schedule. The FIP has been 
agreed with Chief Officer Group (COG). A Separate update on 
the FIP Project is included in the agenda items on the same 
Committee as this report.  
 
An intranet development project team is in place but has 
been delayed due to a VAT inspection drawing key personnel 
and the corporate IT resource still required for the Internet 
Development. This is due to start early 2023. 
 
Work is underway on Open Banking which will improve the 
way we take and make payments. Contracts awards are 
being explored. 
 
Discussions are underway related to further mandatory 
Finance Training and specific performance objectives for 
budget holders. This is planned to start from April 2023. 

P
age 98



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

Task How Progress 
An assurance gap analysis of 
decision making, including 
boards and roles of directors 
to help drive a constitutional 
refresh to support and 
strengthen effective business 
decision making. This will 
include for example schemes 
of delegation and contract 
procedure rules.  

The Business Support Team will map all decision-
making Boards, projects and the forward plan for 
internal and external meetings (for example SLT or 
Cabinet). 
 
SLT/COG to recommend a reduction and focus of 
all boards, with then COG having an oversight of 
all Boards and exception reporting which can then 
be escalated as appropriate to SLT. 
 
This will comment on the constitutional and 
decision making of those boards and projects 
within, as well as make recommendations to the 
constitutional review for improvements to the 
Constitution / schemes of delegation as well as 
policies and procedures. Including ensuring all 
policies and procedures reference are in place and 
up to date, and compliant / consistent with other 
policies. 
 
All Strategic Directors to sign off Directorate 
Scheme of Delegation each February and carry out 
mid-year review (September) to make any 
changes (with standard template of core 
requirements – i.e. Finance, HR, etc…) 
 

Progress has been delayed due to the departure of the 
Monitoring Officer. A summary of the existing Boards and 
potential boards has begun with COG and a list of changes 
has been produced for sign off by COG and SLT in December. 
Whilst that is three months behind schedule, the delay 
should not have an impact on the constitutional changes 
work. This will be picked up by the Interim and new 
Monitoring Officer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Work is ongoing to develop a Scheme of Delegation 
template, and this work will is being picked up by the Interim 
Monitoring Officer. 
 
 
 

P
age 99



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

Task How Progress 
Procurement Rules & Contract Procedure Rules to 
be updated by Feb 2023 and annual review going 
forward 
 
All managers to complete mandatory training on 
decision making and understand role and 
accountability, as well as decision making powers 
with consequences also understood for not 
following. 
 
Annual Report on compliance to go to the Audit & 
Governance Committee 
 
 

This work is in progress. 
 
 
 
A training module is in progress of being drafted and this 
work will be picked up by the new Monitoring Officer. 
 
 
 
This will be addressed in May 2023. 

Strengthen the Council’s 
performance framework, 
including service plans linked 
to performance and medium-
term financial plans.  

A review of the business planning cycle with 
improvement and embedding for 2023/24 with 
actions to enable that in 2022/23 that ensure all 
areas have a service plan, KPIs and aligned budget 
to delivery that meets the MTFP. 
 
This will be set out in a overarching document for 
each level of responsibility that includes the roles, 
accountability / timings and expectations and 
consequences for not delivering against these.  
 

A draft cycle has been presented to COG and the Project 
Management and Performance Management Teams are 
progressing the development of this for the production of 
2023/24 Business Plans and associated documents. This will 
be rolled out for 2023/24 and Service Plans began to be 
written after the publication of the draft budget in January 
2023. 
 
 
 

P
age 100



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

Task How Progress 
Strengthen the process around 
capital decision making, 
including business cases.  

Undertake a review of learning and best practice 
from current schemes to recommend 
improvements. 
 
Update the Constitution and Financial Regulations 
to set out that improved process with appropriate 
policies and procedures, as well as training and 
clarity of roles. 
 
Gateways and decision making is clear, for 
example prioritisation scoring, MRP and costs 
more transparent in the decision-making process 
and the process is followed with consequences 
 
The delegations, including specificity of the 
schemes being carried out and funding under the 
Capital Programme are transparent and approved. 
 

A Capital Board is now in place and a review has drafted an 
outline Terms of Reference and decision making governance 
structure for sign off by the Board in early January 2023. 
 
 
This is in progress and on time. 
 
 
 
A revised approach is to be recommended to the January 
2023 Capital Board. 
 
 
The Capital Board Terms of Reference are in draft and will 
feed into the Constitutional review. 

Further enhance the working 
between Officers and 
Members, including Officer 
Register of Interests.  

A LGA sponsored programme of development. 
 
A review and continuous learning and 
improvement of the Member / Officer protocols. 
 
Formal annual update of the officer register of 
interest linked to performance reviews, with 
mandatory training so all are aware. 

LGA development days were held in July 2022. 
 
This work will need to now be picked up by the new 
Monitoring Officer. 
 
This work will be picked up by the Interim Monitoring 
Officer. 

P
age 101



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

Task How Progress 
Focus on core competency 
training and development for 
all employees, in particular 
HR, finance, decision making 
and performance 
management.  

Design development programmes across various 
levels within the organisation for managers, 
supervisors and staff to ensure that competencies 
required at each level enable each to perform 
their duties effectively. 
 
2023 Performance Reviews to include standard 
targets / objectives for all staff appropriate to 
their level around HR, Finance and Decision 
Making. With direction to training as required. 
This includes thus focused mandatory training as 
appropriate to role across different levels, and 
corporate training basic level for all. 
 
2023 Performance monitored and reported on 
these competencies with appropriate reward, 
development and action.  
 

The Officer Training Module is now live on the Intranet to 
record and direct individual’s training.  
 
The development programme is being developed alongside 
need, including Well-Being in line with the HR Strategy. 
 
These are in progress regarding review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Our Performance maturity is being evolved in line with this 
for later in 2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 102



  

 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2022 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  
 
 
 
Recommendations 
 

1. The Chief Internal Auditor recommends that the Internal Audit progress 
report be noted. 

 
Background 
 

2. The role of the Council’s Internal Audit Service is to enhance and protect 
organisational value by providing independent assurance, advice and insight into the 
Council's overall risk management, governance, anti-fraud and corruption and internal 
control processes.   
 
Audit and compliance 2022/23 deliverables and plan 
 
3. Planned audits for the remainder of the financial year and progress against the 
2022/2023 audit plan continues and is shown in detail at Appendix 1.  The dashboard 
below provides an overview including the status of reviews. 

 
Status Quarter 

1 
Quarter 

2 
Quarter 

3         
to date 

Grants Certified 2 5 8 
Grants - Start Fieldwork  2 1 
Audit - End Audit  3 3 
Audit - Responses received   1 
Audit - Draft report issued   1 
Audit - End Fieldwork 2 2 2 
Audit - Start Fieldwork 6 2 6 
Audit - Terms of Reference Agreed  2  
 10 16 22 

 
 

The figures are compounded (i.e. 22 audit reviews have been started so far this year) 
and are broken down into quarters to show the deliverables as the year progresses. 
 

Audit actions update 
 

4. We are working closely with operational service managers to ensure that actions 
are undertaken. For actions relating to limited assurance audits where a follow up 
audit is planned, actions are transferred to the new audit. 
 

Page 103

AGENDA ITEM 10



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

5. For School’s where outstanding actions have reached 3-6 months there is 
agreement with the Schools Support Forum that a Letter of Concern will be issued.  
Where there remains an inaction a 2nd Letter of Concern will be issued addressed to 
the Chair of Governors.  
 
6. Due to two Schools not responding in full to the first Letter of Concern we are in 
the process of liaising with the Schools Support Forum to issue a second Letter of 
Concern to the two Schools. 
 
 

Schools Auditing Process 
 

7. We are undertaking a risk assessment of the maintained Schools to determine 
which schools are to be included in the audit plan for the year. We are considering the 
budget of the school, procurement card expenditure, number of transactions, staff 
turnover and how long ago the school was last audited. To each element we apply a 
score which gives an overall risk score. After moderation for the 15 schools with the 
highest risk score we have spoken to Schools Improvement and School’s Finance to 
provide further information to further inform our judgement on which Schools should 
be prioritised.  
 
8.  For School’s audits we have a School’s work programme which covers testing 
on financial controls including procurement, policies and procedures. To gather the 
relevant evidence, we make personal visits to the school during the audit.  
 
 

Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
 

9. The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) is a data matching exercise within and 
between public and private sector bodies to help prevent and detect fraudulent 
activity. The deadline for submission for the 202/23 exercise was the 18th November 
2022.  The Council has submitted all the required reports to the NFI team. The results 
of the process highlighting any matches will be sent to the Council in January 2023 
for investigation.   
 
10. Since the last committee we have received 8 notifications/inquiries regarding 
potentially fraudulent activity that have necessitated further inquiries.  

• 4 are now closed after confirming no fraudulent activities. 
• 4 cases remain open and under investigation while the appropriate inquires 

and liaison is made with the relevant parties. 
 

 
Advisory services 
 

11. There has been no advisory work undertaken since our last report  
 
 
Grant certifications 
 

12.  Our grant certification work supports the Council in ensuring that money claimed 
from government agencies is correctly accounted for and we work closely with 

Page 104



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

operational teams to deliver this. 8 grants have been certified as accurate to date.  
Details of certifications are given in Appendix 1. 

 
13. Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG): The team are continuing to progress the audit of 
DFG but there is a delay in obtaining certain requirements of information from a 
number of District Councils.  

 
 
Staffing 
 

14. Currently the Audit and Compliance Manager is overseeing the day-to-day 
operational aspects of the Internal Audit service with support from the Chief Internal 
Auditor (CIA) of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Services (WIASS). This 
arrangement is set to continue until at least the end of the financial year.  
 
15. The team have had two members of staff leave in the past month, one at PO3 
grade and the other at Scale 6 grade. We are currently recruiting on a temporary 
basis through an agency.  
 
16. The team continues to develop, and we have a healthy mix of qualified staff and 
those undertaking training.  All staff have regular performance reviews in line with the 
Council framework, undertake all mandatory training and have regular 1 to 1 
sessions.  
 
17. A review has been ongoing to assess the option to pursue a partnership 
agreement with WIASS that would form a cross public sector Internal Audit team in 
Worcestershire (local government, fire and police). As part of awaiting this review and 
business case it was decided by the CFO to not recruit to the vacant CIA role and 
instead seek support from the WIASS CIA. Unfortunately, it has recently become 
apparent due to differences in terms and conditions across the County and proposed 
partners, that as part of that assessment the option of a shared service including the 
County Council will not be capable of being implemented. As such this option has 
now fallen away. 
 
18. Instead it has now been decided to undertake a recruitment for a Worcestershire 
County Council CIA under the existing job description, and an advert will go out 
shortly. 

 
 
Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Andy Bromage, Chief Internal Auditor, Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service 
Tel: 01905 722051 
Email: Andy.Bromage@worcester.gov.uk 
 
Kathryn Kenderdine, Audit and Compliance Manager 
Tel: 01905 843096 
Email: kkenderdine@worcestershire.gov.uk  
 
Michael Hudson, Chief Financial Officer 
Tel: 01905 845560 

Page 105



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

Email: mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Supporting Information 
 
Appendix 1 Audit status 
Appendix 2 Audit Actions  

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Internal Auditor) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 
 
 

Page 106



Appendix 1

Audit Type Current Milestone Rating
2021/22-58 - BEIS Public Sector Decarbonisation Grant Certification End Audit Certified
2022/23-08 - Worcester Business Central Growth Hub Certification End Audit Certified
2022/23-10 - Broadband UK Certification End Audit Certified
2022/23-16 - Contain Management Outbreak Fund Certification End Audit Certified
2022/23-18 - Drug Treatment Grant Certification End Audit Certified
2022/23-20 - Local Transport Capital Block Funding Certification End Audit Certified
2022/23-22 - Bus Subsidy (Revenue) Grant Certification End Audit Certified
2022/23-24 - Peer Networking Certification End Audit Certified
2021/22-11 - Comberton Primary School Assurance End Audit Moderate Assurance
2020/21-76 - Rigby Hall Day Special Assurance End Audit Limited Assurance
2021/22-75 - Redhill Primary School Assurance End Audit Limited Assurance
2022/23-23 - Disabled Facilities Grant Certification Start Field Work Not assessed
2021/22-14 - Direct payments Assurance Responses Received Not assessed
2022/23-07 - Shrub Hill Governance Assurance Draft report issued Not assessed
2022/23-25 - North Bromsgrove High School Assurance End Field Work Not assessed
2021/22-54 - Long term agency and consultancy placements Assurance End Field work Not assessed
2021/22-06 - Employee starter process Assurance Start Field Work Not assessed
2021/22-56 - Employee leaver process Assurance Start Field Work Not assessed
2021/22-71 - Contract review - Ringway Assurance Start Field Work Not assessed
2022/23-26 - Dodford First School Assurance Start Field Work Not assessed
2021/22-72 - Contract register - supplier spend analysis Advisory Start Field Work Not assessed
2022/23-27 - Office of the Public Guardian Inspection for Appointees and Deputies Assurance Start Field Work Not assessed

Planned Audits
Rigby Hall School follow up audit
Elmley Castle School follow up audit 
Substance Misuse Grant 
Rough Sleepers Grant
Care Quality Commission inspection regime
Day Opportunities review following consultation
Schools * 3 (to be confirmed)

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

N
ot

 D
ue

Tr
an

sf
er

re
d

Cl
ea

re
d

0-
3 

m
on

th
s

3-
6 

m
on

th
s

6-
12

 m
on

th
s 

>1
2 

m
on

th
s

2020/21-81 - Transport services, external and internal management and 
reporting*1

2 1 1

2021/22-52 - St Richard's CE First School*2 3 4
2021/22-20 - Chaddesley Corbett Endowed Primary School*2 7 7 1
2021/22-11 - Comberton Primary School 4 2
2020/21-50 - PY - Asset management - Property 3 5 1

2021/22-75 - Redhill Primary School 9
2021/22-07 - HR mileage and expenses 4
2021/22-05 - Insourced services – advisory and assurance support 1
2020/21-67 - Long term agency and consultancy placements 2 5
2020/21-45 - Elmley Castle First*3 16 1
2020/21-42 - Debt management 15
2019/20-69 - North Bromsgrove High School 1 8

36 3 48 2 0 12 2

*1 Awaiting response from management
*2 Second Letter of Concern to be issued
*3 Follow up audit being undertaken in quarter 4 2022/2023

Substantive Assurance Audits

Moderate Assurance Audits

Limited Assurance Audits

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
Audit and Governance Committee – 3 December 2021 
 

 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2022 
 
FINANCE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
1. The Chief Finance Officer recommends that the report be noted and that further 

updates are brought to the Committee in July 2023. 

Background 
 
2. An introduction to the planned Finance Improvement Programme was presented to the 
last Audit and Governance Committee in December 2021, with an update then taken to 
the March 2022 Committee. This report provides an update on that programme and next 
steps.  

Detail 

3. The programme includes six projects aimed at releasing efficiencies in both Finance 
and other service areas, and facilitating ‘self-serve’ and ‘automation’: 

I. Accounts Payable – ensure more efficient and automated way to buy with 
fewer people, but higher skilled staff. This will start with re-engineering 
process for payments that follow the automated route and then pick up 
feeder system payments 

II. Income & Accounts Receivable – move more income collection to receipt 
of income at point before service and via a Centralised team improved 
income raising and more targeted debt recovery. 

III. E5 and collaborative Planning – upgrade and more user-friendly front 
end, with removal of recharges unless essential to improve data and budget 
monitoring. 

IV. Financial Regulations – ensure that rules governing meet business need 
and drive strong financial management, for example cannot buy without 
budget. 

V. Revenue Budget Monitoring – move to risk assessed self-service by 
budget holders and more check and challenge from Finance linked to 
performance / activity data. 

VI. People – workforce planning for staff to help manage succession and 
reductions 

4. In addition, there is a seventh project that is part of a wider resources programme to 
review and improve the Council’s Intranet as a single point of access and learning tool for 
users and managers. Within that therefore we will have MyFinance project that will create 

Page 111

AGENDA ITEM 11



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

a user (Finance staff and clients) friendly tool around to training, document deposits, self-
service and more. 

5. The key actions expected in the last two quarters since we last reported to this 
Committee were: 

• E5 Upgrade; 

• Draft Financial Regulations 

• Continued improvement in Budget Monitoring 

• Accounts Payable developments in Supplier management Open banking 

• Workforce planning 

The following paragraphs provide members with an update, including these areas. 

- E5 and collaborative Planning 

6. The upgrade of the general ledger was due to Go Live late February 2022. However, 
three critical risks identified in January 2022, meant this was rescheduled to June 2022. 

7. It is pleasing to report that the E5 Upgrade, as well as upgrades to the Social Care 
financial modules (Controcc) were successfully completed in June 2022. There were no 
problems reported or experienced at the time or since in either the Council or our school 
clients.  

8. The Finance Leadership Team has also reviewed the structure of its Systems support 
to ensure it is fit for purpose going forward. This identified a need to address both a risk of 
single person reliance, as well as skills in PowerBi. As such a restructure is just finalising 
that addressed both these risks. 

9. The team are now working on a front end PowerBi solution to supplement Collaborative 
Planning to enable a more user friendly and usable finance dashboard that will sit alongside 
an activity and output performance dashboard also being delivered on the same platform. 
This is now expected to be rolled out mid to late 2023. We have also implemented a training 
programme for staff within the systems team as well as within the corporate and service 
finance teams.  
 

- Financial Regulations  

10. This work is linked to the Annual Governance Statement review, which identified a need 
to review the whole Council’s constitution. As members will recall this has stalled due to the 
departure of the former Monitoring Officer, however as noted elsewhere on the same 
agenda this is now progressing and it is still felt that changes to the Financial Regulations 
will go to May / June Council 2023. 

- Budget Monitoring 

11. Finance have developed and delivered a three module Financial Awareness training 
programme to budget managers and officers across the Council, with in excess of 300 
delegates attending in year. This has promoted the importance of reliable budget 

Page 112



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

monitoring, forecasting and control and raises awareness relating to where the Council 
gets its money from and where it is spent. Feedback on the course has been hugely 
positive and has not only improved financial awareness across the Council and WCF, but 
has raised the profile of the role finance across the organisations.  

12. Monthly budget monitoring continues to be produced for senior management teams 
within the directorates and to the Chief Officer Group and Strategic Leadership Team. 
Alongside this, the finance business partners have developed a number of activity-based 
forecasts within our demand related budgets (predominantly adults and children) so that 
the reader can see the direct correlation between activity, demand, unit costs and 
forecast.  

13. The budget setting process continues to be done in conjunction with the budget 
holders and ensures that they are involved in the development of future budgets at a time 
when they can influence future decision making. 

- Accounts Payable: Supplier Creation 

14. In May 2022 a data analytics report carried out by Internal Audit showed that the 
Council had 29,719 open suppliers on E5.  When comparing supplier name and bank 
details, 3,057 duplicate suppliers were identified. Of these 29,719, 11% (3,262) were 
created in 2021. Of these 3,262, 25% (803) were rejected at Approval stage (mainly due 
to duplication). 

15. Between 1 January 2022 and 30 June 2022, on average 292 new suppliers were 
created each month for company W1 (W1 includes: WCC, Pensions, WCF and Schools). 
There are currently 1,475 E5 users able to raise supplier accounts (this includes schools’ 
users). 

16. The Data Analytics also found: 

Volume (total 
supplier 29,719) 

Issue Impact 

4,669 Suppliers with no email 
address 

Unable to send remittance advices 
electronically, thus creating a more 
labour-intensive process.  Also limits our 
ability to contact/verify suppliers, 
increasing risk of fraud 

20 Supplier with no post code Minimal impact if contact is electronic. 
However, reduces data quality 

218 Suppliers missing bank 
account and/or sort code.    
53 relate to Factoring 
Companies.   
38 relate to Foreign 
Suppliers 

Unable to be paid by BACS, increases 
the need for cheque payments 

11,737 Telephone number issues Reduces the ability to efficiently identify 
duplicate suppliers. 

17. This whole process has been mapped to identify weaknesses and inefficiencies and 
Finance are now redesigning a ‘To Be’ approach that utilises E5 to a fuller potential and 
capacity using the E5 Process Manager solution. 

Page 113



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

18. The implementation of the E5 Process Manager will allow a smart form to be created 
to route the Supplier Creation process and allow a number of automatic checks to be 
carried out at point of creation. This will route through automatically to key areas for the 
business for approval. This will ensure that all details are on E5 from the outset and save 
duplicating effort and will also ensure that key data is completed at the point of creation. 
With the implementation of the E5 supplier portal this will allow new suppliers to be 
created at the same time. This will move suppliers to self-serve of purchase order, 
payments and progress on queries, reducing the number of queries in to the Council from 
both internal and external staff. In conjunction with this implementation, we will carry out a 
comprehensive data cleansing exercise and establish an SLA for all areas of the business 
to ensure that roles and responsibilities are clearly understood.  

19. We will reduce the number of people able to create suppliers and ensure that 
training and guidance is updated and maintained. Given the reduced numbers of staff 
involved with the process we can provide a more comprehensive training and support 
programme. This will work alongside the preferred option for Purchase Order (PO) 
creation and will be the same identified Directorate staff. 

20. The Accounts Payable team are now working on this with the Finance System Team 
to bring in a solution in mid to late 2023. 

- Accounts Payable: Purchase Order (PO) Creation 

21. Purchase Order creation is currently a devolved process and it has been identified 
there are a number of issues with the current process including; 

o PO’s raised inaccurately leading to queries and incorrect payments 
o Poor and delayed good receipting leading to delays in payments and 

increased queries 
o PO’s being raised after goods and services have been delivered leading to 

poor budgetary control 
22. This work links very closely with the proposal for reviewing the supplier set-up and 
a lot of the costs for the implementation of IT changes and additional E5 modules will be to 
deliver both proposals 

23. The current Purchase Order creation process is: 

 

    Devolved to directorates     FOS – Accounts Payable 
24. Implementing a revised process will need to ensure it delivers measurable benefits 
in the following areas in order to reduce queries, improve process, and create efficiencies. 
This will need to take advantage of improved IT usage to reduce and eliminate manual 
processes and move to a supplier self-serve model. 

Create 
Requisition

Purchase 
Order

Approval 
Process

Goods 
Receipting

Invoice 
processing Payment Enquiries 

and reports

              Electronic procurement Accounts Payable

Page 114



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

o Reducing the numbers of people able to create PO’s but investing more 
time in the understanding, training and support so that they have confidence 
in delivering the process, reducing queries and increasing accuracy. 

o Improving management intelligence such as: PO management, budget 
monitoring data and budget driven restrictions to an automated PO creation 
process, to improve budgetary and spend control. 

o “No Purchase Order, No Payment” policy enforced reducing the risk of 
incorrect or late payments, complaints and minimising the risk of fraud via 
incorrect payments (this will be strongly linked to the Supplier Creation 
changes). 

o Electronic delivery of PO and subsequent monitoring and queries via a 
central ‘portal’ automating the ‘sending out’ of the PO’s to reduce 
administration time and enable suppliers to self-serve. 

o Ability for suppliers to check on current PO status and progress to payment 
on the portal reducing progress chasing calls and targeting queries. 

o Improving authorisation process to ensure timely authorisation, goods 
receipting and payment, therefore improving time to pay suppliers which 
supports meeting for the needs of local businesses 

25. As such Finance are now developing a ‘To Be’ Model that will allow a standardised 
but devolved directorate service with digital enhancements to the process that will run 
alongside the introduction of a supplier portal and improved central report and monitoring 
function. This option would include improved training for key directorate staff, clear SLA, 
and process maps. These key staff members would sit in the Directorates but reduced 
from the c1700 to c50.  This would in effect centralise this within the Directorates rather 
than devolved much wider as is currently the case. 

26. It would fully utilise digital alternatives and technology with an automated workflow 
process from pre-populated form creation in E5 Business Process Manager, ensuring 
data is on the Finance system at the outset. This would also allow for check and balances 
to be carried out at point of creation, ensuring accuracy of purchasing, correct coding and 
budgetary commitments. The introduction of the Supplier Portal would mean that PO’s 
and all subsequent payment activity would be available on a self-serve basis for all 
suppliers, significantly reducing the need for central intervention and ensuring that queries 
are reduced.  This has already been achieved in Adult Social Care where all non-
residential providers interact with a portal and there is 100% compliance in terms of 
provision of purchase orders. 

27. By introducing better workflow management it would ensure consistency of form 
completion, improving the user experience and saving time for the Purchase Order raiser, 
and reducing queries. Automation and self-service would be employed.  The Central team 
would report and monitor exceptions.  Digital and automated solutions would give the 
potential to replace off system processes with e-forms and workflow.  Improvement of 
time, cost and quality in the process would enabling more robust management.   

28. The Accounts Payable team are now working on this with the Finance System Team 
to bring in a solution in mid to late 2023. 

  

Page 115



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

- Accounts Payable: Open Banking 

29. Open banking is the new term that refers to the changing process of banks and 
other financial institutions opening up data for regulated providers to access, use and 
share information. This has enabled greater use of applications (apps) to enable easier 
payment and income collection with lower fees and less transactional processes. 

30. The Council’s Finance Team are presently exploring the potential to use this to 
collect income more efficiently as well as making payments. Initial discussions with 
providers suggest that as much as £150,000 could be saved in banking fees per annum. 

31. It is hoped that a contract can be signed before 1 April 2023 with the use of this 
provision to collect income being rolled out in late 2023. 

- People / Workforce Development 

32. The Financial Operational Services (FOS) have developed a pilot succession and 
workforce development plan that is about to be rolled out across all of Finance.  

33. The Workforce Plan will be applicable for all staff and links to job description and 
person specifications to assess: 

o Professional competence 

o Behavioural competence 

o Technical competencies  

o Well-being 

o Own aspiration and personal and professional development needs 

o Planned / known changes in structure and workforce 

34. From this work there is the ability to assess the training needs analysis for the whole 
service and for individuals. This also enables us to work with the team to enable them to 
undertake work that will benefit the business and their own development and career 
opportunities. As well as enabling those that wish to leave the organisation to do so in a 
managed fashion, and managers to plan to avoid retention or skills gap risks.  

35. There will always be changes to staffing retention we cannot and will not control, 
however we hope this approach will increase our opportunity to attract the right talent 
going forward. 

36. As a result of this, all staff will have a workforce plan for the coming years by April 
2023, as well as an individualised training and development plan to support individual and 
collective workforce planning 

37. The Workforce Strategy also includes the development of a standard induction plan 
for new staff, a standard template for objective setting and proves for regular monthly 121 
conversations for staff with their line manager. This links into the mid-year and year-end 
corporate review process.  

 

Page 116



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

- MyFinance 

38. The Council procured a partner to redesign the Internet Webpages, that has led to 
slippage in this programme. However, Finance and IT recently met to look at the 
prioritisation of this for 2023 and further progress is expected during 2023.  

Next steps 

39. The Strategic Board is meeting every six weeks to review progress, risks and 
resources. An update is suggested for the July 2023 Committee.  

Legal, Financial and HR Implications 
 
40. The cost of resourcing this Programme, including MyFinance, of £0.3 million was 
approved by SLT and is funded from the Transformation Reserve. This programme is 
currently thus funded and due to pay back within 18 months. 

 
Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Michael Hudson, Chief Financial Officer 
Tel: Ext 6268 
Email: mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 
 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2022 
 
PEOPLE DIRECTORATE – OCTOBER 2022 DEBT POSITION 
STATEMENT  
 
Recommendation 
 
1. The Chief Financial Officer recommends that the Debt Position Statement for the 

People Directorate is noted. 

Overview of People Directorate Debt Levels 
2. The total debt outstanding for the People Directorate as of 31 October 2022, was £18.83 
million (an increase of £88k on the July 2022 figure previously presented) of which 59.2% 
(60.7% in July 2022) was aged more than four months old. However, while the overall debt 
has increased marginally, the figure for Adults Social Care has increased by £696k while 
Public Health has decreased by £680k.  

Table 1: People Directorate Debt Outstanding @ 31 October 2022 

 

3. As can be seen in Tables 2 and 3, the upward trend in the value of debt with Adult Social 
Care Debt has continued since July with debt increasing by a further 5% (to £15.9 million) in 
the last 3 months, whilst other service areas have reduced by 21% (to £2.9 million) as of 31st 
October 2022. Table 3 below provides further detail of this. This is despite the continued 
increased focus and spend on debt collection in this area. Information from other Authorities 
would indicate the same trend. 

Table 2: People Directorate Debt – Trend Analysis 

 

Data @ 31 Oct 2022 Up To 30 Days Instalment 31 to 120 Days 121 to 365 Days >365 Days Grand Total No of Customers
People - Adults 3,698,884.51 337,704.82 2,755,564.70 3,773,770.28 5,328,221.60 15,894,145.91 5,997
People - Communities 333,234.46 436.70 534,754.88 1,064,496.79 966,971.19 2,899,894.02 344
People - Public Health 1,261.77 11,413.00 216.38 19,622.41 32,513.56 27

Grand Total 4,033,380.74 338,141.52 3,301,732.58 4,838,483.45 6,314,815.20 18,826,553.49 6,368
% of Total Debt 21.4% 1.8% 17.5% 25.7% 33.5%

 -

 5.00

 10.00

 15.00

 20.00

 25.00

De
c-2

0

Jan
-21

Feb
-21

Ma
r-2

1

Ap
r-2

1

Ma
y-2

1

Jun
-21

Jul
-21

Au
g-2

1

Sep
-21

Oc
t-2

1

No
v-2

1

De
c-2

1

Jan
-22

Feb
-22

Ma
r-2

2

Ap
r-2

2

Ma
y-2

2

Jun
-22

Jul
-22

Au
g-2

2

Sep
-22

Oc
t-2

2

Mi
llio

ns

People Directorate Debt Profile

People Adults People Other

Page 119

AGENDA ITEM 12



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

Table 3: People Directorate Debt – Trend Analysis Detail 

 
4. Further detailed analysis of the ASC debt is provided below. The figure for Communities 
(in Table 3) includes an amount of £1.1 million which relates to sums invoiced to the 
University of Worcester in respect of shared costs for The Hive. This invoice has been 
disputed by the University and the Council’s Legal Team are currently exploring the options 
for legal recovery of this debt.  

Adult Social Care (ACS) Debt 
5. Charges in respect of ASC are levied in respect of Residential and Nursing, Domiciliary, 
and Respite Care. The 31 October Debt position for each of these groups can be seen in 
Table 4. (This debt position does not include Deferred Payment Agreements, which are 
explained in paragraph 14.) Table 4 also includes other historical debts where instalment 
provisions have been put in place and other non-service specific charges. 

Table 4: ASC Debtors Per Service Type 

 

6. As previously stated, care is procured by the Council and charges are invoiced 
monthly in arrears.  

7. Table 5 below shows the value of charges raised for the 12 months up to 30 
September 2022, collection rates for all Adult Social Care customers is 81%. However, for 
those ASC clients (approximately 37%) who pay by Direct Debt, collection rates are 
significantly improved at 96%.  For service users paying by an alternative method, the 
collection rates are less successful, with £5.8 million (26.8%) unpaid. 

 

 

 Rolling 12-
Month Period  People Adults 

 People 
Communities 

 People - Public 
Health  Total 

Nov-21 12,911,491.31 1,860,683.79 116,514.19 14,888,689.29
Dec-21 13,174,154.81 2,004,444.04 111,402.60 15,290,001.45
Jan-22 13,739,825.40 2,400,979.16 130,611.98 16,271,416.54
Feb-22 14,347,601.79 2,382,178.60 301,414.49 17,031,194.88
Mar-22 17,097,651.76 3,354,593.19 284,873.32 20,737,118.27
Apr-22 14,831,317.03 6,082,082.27 207,267.33 21,120,666.63
May-22 15,535,167.40 3,996,497.92 371,825.95 19,903,491.27
Jun-22 15,445,033.00 3,828,380.35 378,025.37 19,651,438.72
Jul-22 15,197,673.91 2,828,481.53 712,097.64 18,738,253.08
Aug-22 16,745,191.61 2,725,099.11 107,216.75 19,577,507.47
Sep-22 17,440,932.97 2,978,543.54 32,511.79 20,451,988.30
Oct-22 15,894,145.91 2,899,894.02 32,513.56 18,826,553.49

Service Type Up To 30 Days Instalment 31 to 120 Days 121 to 365 Days >365 Days Grand Total
Residential and Nursing 2,876,606.46 0.00 1,985,910.12 2,639,541.89 2,519,457.99 10,021,516.46
Domiciliary 783,004.71 76.57 719,121.23 994,132.70 2,401,490.20 4,897,825.41
Respite 38,529.00 460.69 48,679.81 131,039.09 235,460.76 454,169.35
Instalment Arrangements 0.00 337,167.56 0.00 0.00 -10,737.96 326,429.60
Other 744.34 0.00 1,853.54 9,056.60 182,550.61 194,205.09

3,698,884.51 337,704.82 2,755,564.70 3,773,770.28 5,328,221.60 15,894,145.91

Page 120



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

Table 5: ASC Monthly Invoices and Collection Rates 

 

8. An analysis of the debt over 365 days since December 2020 is at Table 6.  This shows 
that while the value of debt has increased, the percentage of debt over 365 days has 
remained at circa. 28% of the overall debt. Table 7 shows the age of ASC debt over 365 
days as of 31 October 2022.  

Table 6: Adult Social Care Age of Debt over 365 days 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 7: Adult Social Care Age of Debt over 365 days 

Invoiced Debt O/S % Paid Invoiced Debt O/S % Paid Invoiced Debt O/S % Paid
Oct-21 £2,418,892.20 £309,391.19 87.21 £905,228.16 £7,367.18 99.19 £1,513,664.04 £302,024.01 80.05
Nov-21 £2,607,307.00 £318,542.63 87.78 £950,469.94 £13,573.11 98.57 £1,656,837.06 £304,969.52 81.59
Dec-21 £3,103,383.19 £393,062.29 87.33 £1,213,066.74 £53,345.03 95.60 £1,890,316.45 £339,717.26 82.03
Jan-22 £2,720,896.05 £382,228.65 85.95 £932,967.78 £8,511.76 99.09 £1,787,928.27 £373,716.89 79.10
Feb-22 £2,455,874.37 £319,170.01 87.00 £986,213.02 £13,605.96 98.62 £1,469,661.35 £305,564.05 79.21
Mar-22 £3,178,363.29 £431,456.58 86.43 £1,105,852.12 £23,491.29 97.88 £2,072,511.17 £407,965.29 80.32
Apr-22 £2,458,866.74 £454,998.52 81.50 £898,954.59 £11,171.08 98.76 £1,559,912.15 £443,827.44 71.55
May-22 £2,989,319.76 £578,104.24 80.66 £982,341.64 £21,881.28 97.77 £2,006,978.12 £556,222.96 72.29
Jun-22 £3,328,814.78 £599,456.29 81.99 £1,288,566.75 £32,931.55 97.44 £2,040,248.03 £566,524.74 72.23
Jul-22 £2,712,749.00 £716,367.96 73.59 £1,097,007.79 £189,587.17 82.72 £1,615,741.21 £526,780.79 67.40
Aug-22 £2,979,932.05 £925,544.25 68.94 £943,729.54 £46,892.07 95.03 £2,036,202.51 £878,652.18 56.85
Sep-22 £3,357,128.66 £940,243.05 71.99 £1,191,050.49 £85,639.05 92.81 £2,166,078.17 £854,604.00 60.55

£34,311,527.09 £6,368,565.66 81.44 £12,495,448.56 £507,996.53 95.93 £21,816,078.53 £5,860,569.13 73.14

Total
Period

Direct Debit Customers Non Direct Debit Customers

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

 -

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

Mi
llio

ns

Adult Social Care Debt 

> 365 days (ASC) % of Overall Debt

Page 121



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

 

9. Table 7 shows that debt levels have increased significantly since 2019, at which time 
responsibility for charges for residential care transferred to the Council rather than direct 
client billing from Care Providers. Residential and Nursing Care currently accounts for 63% 
of all debt.   

10. The impact of Covid 19 and widespread speculation on planned changes to ASC funding 
are also likely to be factors in payment decline. WCC are currently exploring action that may be 
taken to change this behaviour. To identify future strategies for recovery, we have undertaken an 
analysis of the ASC debtors. Table 8 shows the various ASC debtor groups @ 31st October 
2022. 

Table 8: Adult Directorate Customer Groups 

 

11. Debt recovery action has processes to deal with various debtor types. These include legal 
action where other recovery activity has not been successful. For ASC Individual clients, which 
are by far the largest group of debts, we have further sub-divided the Debtor Groups as shown in 
Table 9. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 9: ASC Individual Debtor Groups 

2016 180,413.42
2017 372,684.65
2018 534,817.34
2019 769,377.02
2020 1,784,492.21
2021 1,686,436.96

Total 5,328,221.60

Year Raised People - Adults

Customer Groups Up To 30 Days Instalment 31 to 120 Days 121 to 365 Days >365 Days Total
Individual 2,312,282.88 337,704.82 2,743,096.15 3,598,267.99 5,036,978.12 14,028,329.96
Health Authority 1,274,646.69 - - 77,877.02 41,787.67 1,394,311.38
Commercial Organisation 111,954.94 - 12,468.55 61,881.28 177,119.29 363,424.06
Local Authority - - - 35,743.99 7,714.02 43,458.01
Other (Under Investigation) - - - - 64,622.50 64,622.50
Total 3,698,884.51 337,704.82 2,755,564.70 3,773,770.28 5,263,599.10 15,894,145.91

Page 122



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

 

 

12. As shown in Table 9, the Finance Operational Services (FOS) Debt and Legal Teams 
continue to chase debts outstanding.  Given the scale of the task and the resource available, 
this is likely to take some considerable time. The Team continues to review the resourcing of 
this activity and whether external collection provision should or could be used.  However, 
such a move could attract negative publicity, particularly during the “cost of living” crisis.  
There has been increased pressure in Court of Protection client debt and dedicated resource 
is now in place to manage this. It should also be noted that while over £4.5m is owed by 
clients who are still in receipt of service the Council is not legally permitted to withdraw its 
provision to these individuals.  We continue to explore how best to secure payments from 
such individuals.  

13. Considering the increasing debt levels, FOS teams are considering a number of 
initiatives to improve client engagement and increase payment levels. Specific projects and 
developments, as well as legal action noted above, include: 

• the implementation of an enhanced Billing Module within the Social Care Case 
Management System, which will provide service users with a monthly holistic view 
of their account including care provision and payment information to date rather 
than the current provision of individual monthly invoices. This project has now 
commenced. 

• The current reporting mechanisms in e5 (finance system) are complex and involve 
using bespoke software. This limits the ability to produce some reports in 
particular time and date sensitive reports. With the introduction of the Billing 
Module (stated above) later next year, we hope to be able to produce better 
quality information from ContrOCC (Social Care Case Management System). We 
are also working to move the e5 data into a data warehouse and use PowerBi for 
our reporting tool during the course of next year.  

• progressing the implementation of paperless Direct Debit (DD) functionality, which 
will make it easier for clients to sign-up for DD collection. As shown above, this 
has a major impact on payment levels, and we propose that DD be promoted and 
marketed as the default payment channel for collecting social care charges.  

Debtor Groups - Individuals No of Debtors Debt Value Debt Activity
Current Transactions Only 2362 1,548,694.02 No action required - accounts up to date
Debts with Legal Service 138 2,540,091.93 Legal Action in Progress
Credit or Less than £50 616 322,530.50-        Consider write off/on
COP Clients 137 2,297,565.50 Pursuing with Financial Representatives
Deceased >12 months 336 877,331.13 To be reviewed on case by case basis
Deceased < 12 Months 123 459,698.94 Pursuing with Executors
Current Client with multiple  2022 and Aged Debts 565 2,403,796.97 Chasing action continues with little success
Current Client with multiple 22 Debts 800 2,119,395.18 Chasing action continues
Not Current Client Debts Pre-Dating 2019 Only 167 145,554.36 Consider write off action
Not Current Client Debts Aged 2019 and March 2022 466 547,424.52 Chasing action continues with little success
Not Current Client 2022 and Aged Debts 455 870,198.82 Pursuing with Client
Not Current Client 2022 Debts Only 172 541,109.09 Pursuing with Client
Total 6337 14,028,329.96

Page 123



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

• visibility of debts is now shared with ASC service teams and budget holders 
monthly, with some teams actively engaging with service users (or their 
representatives) regarding debt levels and payment activity. 

• FOS and the People Directorate are planning to further explore how 
communication with clients in respect of their financial obligations for care 
provision can be improved.  Evidence suggests that when both care and financial 
matters are discussed together, clients often fail to retain the financial impact at 
such a life-changing moment.  Consideration needs to be given to introducing a 
separate financial discussion with service users where the potential financial 
impact of their care decisions can be clearly explained. 

• Delays in client engagement with the financial process are also leading to delays 
in issuing service invoices. This has resulted in clients receiving large initial bills 
covering several weeks or months of service. Council policy does permit for a full 
cost invoice to be produced if a financial assessment is not completed with 4 
weeks. However, the ongoing issues has resulted in some assessments taking 
much longer than this timescale, with cases placed on-hold while awaiting 
financial information. 

14. In addition to the ASC invoiced debt noted above, the Council has a longer-term debt 
that it recognises of £2.6 million (as @ October 22) relating to Deferred Payment 
Agreements. In these cases, eligible service users enter into a legal agreement whereby a 
charge is placed against property by the Land Registry to secure the Council’s debt. During 
the lifetime of the loan, daily compounded interest (currently 1.55%) is applied and 
statements are issued to the service user/representative/estate every 6 months to show the 
balance of accrued debt. The rate of interest is set nationally. Cases are reviewed annually, 
and property equity is monitored against current market values. Agreements end on death of 
the service user or on the sale of property, the loan is repaid in full and the charge against 
property is lifted. The Council currently has 76 Deferred Payment Agreements in place.  

Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Michael Hudson, Chief Finance Officer, 01905 845560, mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk 

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Finance Officer) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report. 

Page 124

mailto:mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk


  

 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2022 
 
COMMITTEE TRAINING PROPOSALS 
 
 
 
Recommendations 
 

1. The Chief Financial Officer recommends that the Training Proposal 
attached as an Appendix be approved.  

 
Background 
 

2. The Audit and Governance Committee has a long-established training 
programme. With the revisions to the Committee following the electoral cycle a 
revised programme has been put together to look at providing a strong competency 
based framework for all members of the Committee. 
 

Progress 
 

3. The attached Appendix sets out the proposed training plan for the remainder of 
this electoral cycle. It is noted that the programme will be a mixture of face-to-face 
delivery and on-line training. Where training is held face to face every effort will be 
made to set dates significantly in advance to allow members to attend, although 
where members cannot attend, all training will be recorded and available for non-
attendees to follow up at a later date. 
 
4. Members will be required to attend / complete all training modules. Alongside this 
the programme will continue to be reviewed in light of emerging developments from 
CIPFA, Government and ARGA. 
 
5.  Officers will carry out a post training session evaluation and will continually seek 
advice and comments from members attending on the focus and style of training. 

 
6. It is suggested this programme could form the basis of an Annual Report 
presented to Full Council by the Chairman of the Audit and Governance Committee 
to demonstrate the effectiveness of the Committee. This Annual Report would need 
to be included in the update to the constitution to be considered by Council.  

 
Supporting information 
 
Appendix – Proposed Audit & Governance Committee Training Programme 2022-2025 
 
Contact Points 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Michael Hudson, Chief Financial Officer 
Tel: 01905 726268 

Page 125

AGENDA ITEM 13



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

Email: mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 
Supporting Information 
 
Appendix - Proposed Audit & Governance Committee Training Programme 2023-2025 
 
Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Financial Officer) there are no 
background papers relating to the subject matter of this report.

Page 126

mailto:mhudson@worcestershire.gov.uk


  

 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

Appendix 
Proposed Audit & Governance Committee Training Programme 2023-2025 
 

Technical Knowledge: Potential E-Learning modules 

2023 

Accounts – Valuations / Property, Plant & Equipment: A focus on the methods 
use to value and estimate values of our key assets, as well as coverage. This will 
inform Members ahead of scrutiny of the Councils 2022/23 draft statement of 
accounts 

Audit Landscape: There are a number of national 
changes taking place around how external and 
internal audit are set out, delivered and governed. 
This includes ARGA, the appointment of external 
auditors, fee setting and quality reviews of IA. 

Treasury Management: This will inform members of the Councils Treasury 
Strategy, the reasoning behind risk, as well as how and where the Council invests 
/ borrows its money. The cashflow forecasting employed and the accounting for 
treasury management.  

Audit Code changes: CIPFA and NAO regularly carry 
out updates to audit codes of practice. This training 
will cover the basic content and updates 
(happening and planned) 

Constitution: This training will coincide with the planned update of the 
Authority’s Constitution as part of its Annual Governance Statement work. As 
such it will look at what is a Constitution, what does it cover and how is it applied. 

Regulation updates: Government sets out 
regulations as to how finance functions, audit and 
audit committees must work. This session will 
focus on what these are and any updates 
(happening or planned).  

Financial Sustainability: This will focus on how the Council assesses factors that 
affect its long term financial viability, including commitments, budget monitoring 
and management of reserves. 

Skills Frameworks: This programme will focus on 
the core competencies of audit and finance, 
including risk based audit, estimation and 
forecasting.  

P
age 127



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

Technical Knowledge: Potential E-Learning modules 

2024 

Internal Audit: A focus on the role of IA, qualitative factors and measures, 
resourcing, risk based approach including three lines of defence, as well as good 
reporting and follow up. 

Role of the Statutory Officers: who are statutory officers, what 
are they responsible for, where is their role defined and what 
does that mean for the way we work. 

Business Continuity: This will focus on what is Business Continuity, when does it 
apply, how it is managed and what an Audit Committee should look at in 
assessing the effectiveness of an organisations response to incidents.  

Partnership Governance: How do we work with our partners; 
what difference factors do we need to consider in making 
decisions across partnerships. 

Risk Management: What is risk management, how do you assess likelihood and 
impact, what is a risk event, what is mitigation and residual risk, as well as what is 
risk appetite. 

Ombudsman: Which Ombudsman bodies cover local 
government, how do they operate and how do we respond. 

Fraud and Money Laundering: A guide to legislative requirements to safeguard 
public funds. How we plan and undertake checks within our controls to mitigate 
these risks. 
  

Transparency & openness: why is this such an important 
principle of the public sector and what does it mean? How do 
we interpret and ensure we are in line with standards? Where 
do the ‘grey lines’ lie? 

2025 

Induction & Role of an Audit Committee: Basic introduction to the purpose of an 
Audit Committee, the Terms of Reference, Frequency and agenda of meetings, 
where to find further information and introduction to key officers and partners. 

External & Internal Audit: Who are they, what are their powers, 
what areas do they look at, how are they different. Introduction 
to our auditors as well as plans of work and ways of reporting to 
Committee. 

 
 

P
age 128



  

 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
30 NOVEMBER 2022 
 
WORK PROGRAMME  
 
 
 
Recommendation 
 

1. The Committee is asked to note its future work programme and consider 
whether there are any matters it would wish to be incorporated. 

 
Work Programme 
 

 
10 March 2023 
AGS Action Plan Review 
External Audit – Audit Plan 2022/23 and Informing the Risk Assessment 2022/23 
Internal Audit Progress Report 2022/23 
Schools auditing processes 
Internal Audit Plan 2023/24 
Corporate Risk Report 
Income and Debt Management 
 
21 July 2023 
AGS Action Plan Review 
Internal Audit Annual Report 2022/23 
Draft Annual Governance Statement 2022/23 
Draft Annual Statutory Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2023  
Internal Audit Progress Report 2023/24 
Corporate Risk Report  
Finance Improvement Programme 
Income and Debt Management 
 
22 September 2023  
AGS Action Plan Review 
Internal Audit Progress Report 2023/24 
External Audit – Audit Findings Report  
Annual Governance Statement 
Annual Statutory Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2023 
Corporate Risk Report 
Income and Debt Management 
 
1 December 2023 
AGS Action Plan Review 
Internal Audit Progress Report 2023/24  
External Auditor – Annual Audit Letter 
Corporate Risk Report 
Finance Improvement Programme 

Page 129

AGENDA ITEM 14



 
Audit and Governance Committee – 30 November 2022 
 

Income and Debt Management 
 
 
 

Contact Points 
 
Simon Lewis, Committee Officer 
Tel: 01905 846621 
Email: slewis@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and 
Governance) there are no background papers relating to the subject matter of this 
report. 

Page 130

mailto:slewis@worcestershire.gov.uk

	Agenda
	5 Statutory Accounts and Pension Fund 2021/2022 - External Audit Findings Report
	AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
	30 NOVEMBER 2022
	STATUTORY ACCOUNTS AND PENSION FUND 2021/22 – EXTERNAL AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT
	Recommendation
	Summary
	Contact Points
	Supporting Information
	Background Papers

	Au2022-11-30 Audit Findings Report - App1 WCC
	Au2022-11-30 Audit Findings Report - App2 Pension Fund

	6 Annual Governance Statement
	AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
	30 NOVEMBER 2022
	ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2021/22
	Recommendation
	Background
	Content
	Contact Points
	Supporting Information
	Background Papers

	Au2022-11-30 Annual Governance Statement - App

	8 Appointment of External Auditors Update
	AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
	30 NOVEMBER 2022
	APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS
	Recommendation
	Introduction
	Contact Points
	Background Papers


	9 Annual Governance Update
	AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
	30 NOVEMBER 2022
	ANNUAL GOVERNANCE UPDATE
	Recommendations
	Background
	Contact Points
	Background Papers


	10 Internal Audit Progress Update
	AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
	30 NOVEMBER 2022
	INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
	Recommendations
	Background
	Schools Auditing Process
	7.	We are undertaking a risk assessment of the maintained Schools to determine which schools are to be included in the audit plan for the year. We are considering the budget of the school, procurement card expenditure, number of transactions, staff turnover and how long ago the school was last audited. To each element we apply a score which gives an overall risk score. After moderation for the 15 schools with the highest risk score we have spoken to Schools Improvement and School’s Finance to provide further information to further inform our judgement on which Schools should be prioritised.
	8.	For School’s audits we have a School’s work programme which covers testing on financial controls including procurement, policies and procedures. To gather the relevant evidence, we make personal visits to the school during the audit.
	Staffing
	Contact Points
	Supporting Information
	Background Papers

	au2022-11-30 Internal Audit Progress Report - App1 - Audit Status
	au2022-11-30 Internal Audit Progress Report - App2 - Action Status

	11 Finance Improvement Programme
	AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
	30 NOVEMBER 2022
	FINANCE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME
	Recommendation
	Background
	Contact Points
	Background Papers


	12 People Directorate - Debt Position Statement
	AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
	30 NOVEMBER 2022
	PEOPLE DIRECTORATE – OCTOBER 2022 DEBT POSITION STATEMENT
	Recommendation
	Overview of People Directorate Debt Levels

	Table 1: People Directorate Debt Outstanding @ 31 October 2022
	Table 2: People Directorate Debt – Trend Analysis
	Table 3: People Directorate Debt – Trend Analysis Detail
	Adult Social Care (ACS) Debt

	Table 4: ASC Debtors Per Service Type
	Table 6: Adult Social Care Age of Debt over 365 days
	Table 7: Adult Social Care Age of Debt over 365 days
	Table 8: Adult Directorate Customer Groups
	Table 9: ASC Individual Debtor Groups
	Contact Points
	Background Papers


	13 Committee Training Proposals
	AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
	30 NOVEMBER 2022
	COMMITTEE TRAINING PROPOSALS
	Recommendations
	Background
	Contact Points
	Supporting Information
	Background Papers


	14 Work Programme
	AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
	30 NOVEMBER 2022
	WORK PROGRAMME
	Recommendation
	Work Programme
	Contact Points
	Background Papers



